
1 | Page 

  PLUMAS EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
200 LUNDY LANE BLAIRSDEN, CALIFORNIA 96103 

PHONE:  530-836-1953 FAX:  530-836-2963 TOLL FREE:  877-377-1953 
Email – jillian.pecsd@gmail.com 

Web-www.pecsd.org 

REGULAR  
BOARD MEETING 

AGENDA
June 20, 2023 

9:00am 

Board of Directors 
Chairperson Don Fregulia  

Vice Chairperson VACANT 
Director Todd Solomon 
Director   Cheryl Sinsel 
Director Rich Machado  

*Members of the Public may address the Board on items of business immediately before 
or during the Board’s consideration of the item after being recognized by the Board Chair 
(limit on the time the public may address the Board is 3 minutes)

1. Call Meeting to Order
Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia

2. Approval of May 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Discussion and Possible Action

3. Approval of June 8, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes
Discussion and Possible Action

4. Filling Board Vacancy
General Manager Jamar Tate
The Board will vote to approve the addition of Kim Train to the Board 
of Directors. To be sworn in by the General Manager following 
approval.



 

2 | Page 
 

  
 
 

 
5. Fiscal Year 23/24 Budget  

General Manager Jamar Tate  
The board will review and discuss the final budget proposal for fiscal 
year 2023/2024.  
Discussion and Possible Action  
 

6. Tax Increase to Support the Fire Department, Resolution 2023-02 
Project Manager John Rowden 
The Board will consider approving a Resolution to put a measure 
before the voters of the District to increase the tax to support the Fire 
Department.  
Discussion and Possible Action  
 

7. Surplus Supplies & Equipment Disposal Policy  
General Manager Jamar Tate 
The Board will review and discuss a draft policy for the disposal 
District surplus supplies and equipment. 
Discussion and Possible Action  
 

8. Rate Study 
General Manager Jamar Tate  
The Board will give authorization to staff to request bids for a rate 
study.  
Discussion and Possible Action  
 
 
 

9. Water System Compliance & Pilot Study Update  
General Manager Jamar Tate 
The Board will be updated on water system compliance and the Pilot 
Study by Dowl      
Discussion and Possible Action 
 
 

10. Fire Chief’s Report 
Fire Chief Steve Munsen 



 

3 | Page 
 

The Report may cover the following: 
a. Call Reports & Training  
b. Personnel Actions and Activities.  
c. Fire Apparatus & Equipment  
d. Plumas County Fire Chiefs Association Actions and Activities 
e. Firewise Committee Actions and Activities 
f. Financial Assistance from the Auxiliary, grants, and other 

funding sources 
g. Department administrative activities, actions, and issues such as 

budget and insurance.  
Discussion and Possible Action  
 

11. Committee Reports   
a. Budget and Finance Committee 
b. Water and Wastewater Committee 
c. Personnel and Benefits Committee 
d. Safety and Emergency Committee  
e. Administrative Services Committee   

           Discussion and Possible Action   
 

12. General Manager’s Report  
General Manager Jamar Tate 
The Board will consider the status of the listed topics presented by 
staff and determine if any actions are needed. 

a. Financial Reports   
b. Operations Report    
c. Miscellaneous 

Discussion and Possible Action  

 

13. Administration 
Project Manager John Rowden   
a. Status of Invoices & Liens 
b. Status of Administrative Activities 

          Discussion and Possible Action    

14. Written Correspondence to the Board 
Discussion and Possible Action 

15.  Public/Board Comment Period   



 

4 | Page 
 

The public and/or the Board of Directors may address the Board on 
items within the District’s subject matter jurisdiction that are on the 
agenda, the public and/or the Board of Directors may also address 
items not included on the agenda.  The Board cannot comment or take 
actions on non-agenda items but may place the items on future 
agenda(s) for discussion and/or action.  Strict limit on the time the 
public may address the Board is three (3) minutes per speaker.  
Discussion Item 

16. Closed Session  
General Manager Evaluation  

17. Future Agenda Items  
 General Manager Jamar Tate  
Discussion and Possible Action  

18. Adjournment 

 

ADA Compliance:  This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative 
formats to persons with disability, as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990 (42 U.S.C.  Sec.  12132)  and the Ralph M.  Brown Act (Cal.  Govt.  Code Sec. 
54954.2).  Persons requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation should 
contact General Manager, Jamar Tate, at (530) 836-1953 during regular business hours, 
at least 24 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 



PLUMAS EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

200 LUNDY LANE 

BLAIRSDEN, CALIFORNIA 96103 

PHONE: 530-836-1953 
FAX: 530-836-2963 

TOLL FREE: 877-377-1953 

Email - jillian.pecsd@gmail.com 

Web - www.pecsd.org 

REGULAR 
BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 

May 16, 2023 

9:00AM 

200 Lundy Lane 

BLAIRSDEN, CA 96103 

Board of Directors 
Board Director Don Fregulia 

Board Director Todd Solomon 
Board Director Cheryl Trenwith-Sinsel 

Board Director VACANT 
Board Director VACANT 

1. Call Meeting to Order 

Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia called to order the Regular Board Meeting of Plumas Eureka 
Community Services District ("PECSD") at 0900 hours. 

2. Approval of March 21, 2023, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
The Board was presented with the March 21, 2023, Regular Board Meeting minutes. 

Motion to approve the February 15, 2023, Regular Board Meeting minutes as submitted. 

Motioned Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 

2nd : Board Director Todd Solomon 

All in Favor. 

Aye - Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 
Aye - Board Director Todd Solomon 
Aye - Board Director Cheryl Sinsel 

ll Page 

www.pecsd.org
mailto:jillian.pecsd@gmail.com


3. Filling Board Vacancies 

Motion to appoint Rich Machado as a Director of PECSD Board. To replace Mark Shadowens, 
who resigned in September 2022. 

Motioned Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 
2 nd : Board Director Todd Solomon 

All in Favor. 

Aye - Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 
Aye - Board Director Todd Solomon 

Aye - Board Director Cheryl Sinsel 

Rich Machado is hereby appointed to the PECSD Board and is authorized as signatory on all 

PECSD Plumas Bank accounts. 

4. FY 2021-2022 Audit 

The Board was presented with the Financial Statements, Management Discussion and Analysis, 
and independent Auditor's Report for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Motion to accept the Financial Statements, Management Discussion and Analysis, and 

independent Auditor's Report for the year ended June 30, 2022 as submitted. 

Motioned: Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 

2nd: Board Director Todd Solomon 

All in Favor. 

Aye - Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 
Aye - Board Director Todd Solomon 

Aye - Board Director Cheryl Sinsel 

Aye - Board Director Rich Machado 

5. Financial Management 
The Board was presented with a financial management overview and analysis by Project 

Manager John Rowden. The Board will take more time to review the contents and address this 
item at a future meeting. 

6. Water Debt Service Account 
The Board was presented with a starting balance analysis to separate water treatment plant 

funds from the District's current checking account. The current balance is approximately 
$362,777.33. This balance reflects funds collected from water debt service charges since 2018, 
less the repayment of the District's $350,000.00 planning loan from the State Revolving Fund 

21 Page 

https://350,000.00
https://362,777.33


and other associated treatment plant expenses. 

Following a discussion regarding the type of account and procedures regarding its use, the 
Board elected to explore this item in conjunction with the District's financial management plan 
at a future meeting. 

7. Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Draft Budget 
General Manager Jamar Tate presented the Board with a draft of the District's Fiscal Year 

2023/2024 Budget, beginning July 1, 2023. 

The Board will review the contents of the budget and will provide feedback directly to the 
General Manager prior to the next meeting. 

Clerk's Note: Board Director Cheryl Sinsel left the meeting at 1052 hours. 

8. Water System Compliance & Pilot Study Update 
Results from testing April 13, 2023, showed the As level at the compliance point to be 8 ppb; at 
Well lB to be 7 ppb; and at Well 2 to be 11 ppb. The EPA Standard is 10 ppb. The running 

annual average (RAA) at the compliance point is 8 ppb, 7 ppb at Well lB, and 15 ppb at Well 2. 

The most recent results of the tests of the Quarterly samples taken on April 13, 2023, for Iron 

were .280 mg/I at Well lB and 1.05 mg/I at Well 2; for Manganese were .100 mg/I at Well lB 
and .08 mg/I at Well 2. (The Secondary Standard for Iron is .300 mg/I. The Secondary Standard 

for Manganese is .05 mg/I.). 

The Arsenic Remediation Project (Water Treatment Plant) Development schedule has been 
changed due to delays in the start of final pre-funding pilot testing. Historic weather has been a 
factor. The current projected schedule is below: 

STAGE TIMEFRAME COMMENT 

FINANACAL 
SRF application submittal August2023 Submittal is contingent on the final 

pilot study report being accepted by 
SWRCB. Pilot study should be 
completed by May/June 2023 and Pilot 
Study Report will be submitted to 
SWRCB in June 2023 (three weeks 
after final pilot testing). 

Application Review August 2023 - January 2024 Assumes a six-month review 
CONSTRUCTION 
Contractor Selection Apr 2024-May 2024 Assumes and 90 day bid and selection 

process 
Construction Jun 2024 - Jun 2025 Assumes a one-year construction 
OPERATION 
Shakedown Jul 2025 - Jun 2026 Needed to ensure the systems work 

and 
to train operators 

Pilot Testing Jul 2026-Jun2027 Needed to refine operational 
procedures 

3I Page 



to maximize removal ofAs, Fe,and 
Mn. 

Full Operation Jul2027 

9. Lift Station 7 Replacement Update 
General Manager Jamar Tate advised the Board that a consultation with McGarr excavation had 

resulted in an updated course of action to the replacement of the lift station at WWTP 7. The 
original plan to construct a temporary bypass faced significant challenges including lead time, 
ground conditions, and increased danger from trench collapse and fall hazards. 

Mr. Tate presented the Board with an updated estimate of $171,000.00 to construct a new lift 
station at WWTP 7. The old lift station will then serve as a backup basin, providing additional 

protection from spilling into the Feather River if an issue occurs. The original estimate from 
McGarr Excavation was $160,762.00, approved by the Board in late 2022. 

Motion to approve the estimate from McGarr Excavation, Inc. In the amount of $171,500.00 to 

construct a new lift station at WWTP 7. 

Motioned: Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 

2nd: Board Director Todd Solomon 

All in Favor. 

Aye - Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 
Aye - Board Director Todd Solomon 

Aye - Board Director Cheryl Sinsel 

Aye - Board Director Rich Machado 

10. Fire Chief's Report 
Clerk's Note: Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia tabled this item in the absence ofFire Chief Steve 
Munsen. A summary of the written report is included below. 

a. Call Report & Training Report 

Copies of the Call and Training Reports are available for viewing at Plumas 

Eureka Fire Department ("PEFD") Administrative Office upon request. 
PEFD Volunteers are keeping abreast of the latest precautions for COVID 19 and 

will continue to follow CDC and NorCal EMS guidelines and requirements. 

b. Personnel 

Former Fire Chief John Sea has reunited with the Plumas Eureka Volunteer Fire 
Department. Recruiting continues for volunteer firefighters. Interested 
parties can email volunteers@pecsd.org or contact the office at 530-836-0532. 

c. Fire Apparatus & Equipment Maintenance 

Chief Munsen continues research on converting Engine 9153, PEFD's EMS 
vehicle, to a wet rescue truck capable of both medical and fire responses. 

41 Page 

mailto:volunteers@pecsd.org
https://171,500.00
https://160,762.00
https://171,000.00


d. Training 

The Department will be sending 2 volunteers to Engine Driver lA and 1 volunteer 
to the Fire Academy in Quincy this season. 

e. Firewise Committee Actions and Activities 
Nothing to Report. 

f. Miscellaneous 

The interior of the engine bays at the Fire Department building were painted in 

April. PECAUX's Annual Pancake Breakfast fundraiser will be held on Saturday, 
May 27th, 2023. Burn permits are required and can be received on-line at the 

Cal Fire website or at the Mohawk Ranger station. The Air Quality Board 
determines burn days. Please call (530) 832=4528, press 5 for our region, and 
listen to the entire message for day designation and instructions. 

11. Committee Reports 
Nothing to Report. 

12. General Manager's Report 
a. February & March 2023 Financial Reports 

The Board was presented with the PECSD Financial Reports for the months of 
February and March 2023. 

Motion to accept the February and March 2023 financial reports as submitted. 

Motioned: Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 

2nd 
: Board Director Todd Solomon 

All in Favor. 

Aye - Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 

Aye - Board Director Todd Solomon 

Aye - Board Director Rich Machado 

Absent - Board Director Cheryl Sinsel 

b. Employee Recruitment 
General Manager Jamar Tate advised the Board the Administrative Manager 

Jillian Cole had resigned with notice effective end of day May 19, 2023. The 

position has been posted locally and on pertinent recruitment websites. Updates 
will be made available as they develop in filling the position. 

c. Operations Report 
Water 

SI Page 



March 2023 Flow: Well lB - 1,333,300 gallons Well 2- 0 gallons Total- 1,333,300 
gallons. 

April 2023 Flow: Well lB - 1,489,200 gallons Well 2- 0 gallons Total- 1,489,200 
gallons. 
Seasonal turn-ans for water are less than average this year. USA North 811 

requests are higher than usual due to new construction and internet installations. 

Wastewater 

March 2023 Flow: WWTP # 6- 489,119 gallons WWTP # 7: 2,420,416 gallons 

Total: 2,909,535 gallons. 

April 2023 Flow: WWTP # 6- 438,917 gallons WWTP # 7: 1,944,013 gallons Total: 
2,382,930 gallons. 

The WWTP 6 tank house experienced some effluent leakage from an outgoing 
plumbing issue. This was repaired by staff. 

Misc. 
As-built maps have been acquired for the Village at Plumas Pines Development. 

13. Administration 
Administrative Manager Jillian Cole advised the Board regarding collections efforts, liens, 
invoicing status, and income tracking for the months of March and April 2023. 

14. Written Correspondence to the Board 

Nothing to Report. 

15. Public/Board Comment Period 

Nothing to Report. 

16. Closed Session 
Clerk's Note: This item was tabled to a later meeting due to time constraints 

17. Future Agenda Items 
Green Waste Disposal 
FY 2023/2024 Budget 

Meadow Lane Irrigation Issue 
Sugar Pine River Access 

18. Adjournment 
Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia adjourned the regular Board meeting at 1146 hours. 

In Attendance: 

Vice Chairperson Don Fregulia 
Board Director Todd Solomon 
Board Director Cheryl Trenwith-Sinsel 

6I Page 



Board Director Rich Machado 
Board Director-VACANT 

Respectfully Submitted, 

(Signature on file) 

Jillian Cole 
Board Clerk 

71 Page 



1 | P a g e  

PLUMAS EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
200 LUNDY LANE 

BLAIRSDEN, CALIFORNIA 96103
PHONE: 530-836-1953 

FAX: 530-836-2963 
TOLL FREE: 877-377-1953 

Email – admin.mgr@pecsd.com  
Web - www.pecsd.org

SPECIAL
BOARD MEETING

MINUTES
June 8, 2023

1:00PM
200 Lundy Lane 

BLAIRSDEN, CA 96103

Board of Directors 
Chairperson Don Fregulia  
Vice Chairperson VACANT

Board Director Todd Solomon 
Board Director Cheryl Trenwith-Sinsel

Board Director Rich Machado  

1. Call Meeting to Order
Chairperson Don Fregulia called to order the Special Board Meeting of Plumas Eureka 

Community Services District (“PECSD”) at 15:00 hours.

Clerk’s Note: Director Solomon was absent during the meeting.

2. Administrative Manager New Hire – Gina Morris 
The Board was briefed on the recruiting effort on the filling of the administrative manager 
position and the selection of Gina Morris for the position. General Manager Jamar Tate gave a 
summary of the interview with Gina Morris and provided the Board with the resume of Gina 
Morris. Chairperson Fregulia, Chief Steve Munsen, John Rowden, General Manager Jamar Tate 
and Linda Reason, public participant, were part of the interview panel. It was agreed that Gina’s 
skills and abilities would be an asset to the District.  Jamar extended an offer to Ms. Morris that 
she accepted.  Gina’s first day will be June 21.  

 
3. Fiscal Year 23/24 Budget Draft  



2 | P a g e  

The Board reviewed and discussed the proposed budget for the upcoming fiscal year 2023-
2024. Sewer expenses and short comings were discussed, highlighting the current rates are not 
sufficient for the operation of the sewer system in the future. Roughly half of the homes are on 
the sewer system and operational costs have increased. The sewer budget has seen some high 
expenses in recent years due to expensive projects to upgrade the lift stations serving the area.  

The need for a fire tax increase was discussed and highlighted as an issue that needs to be 
addressed to sustain the fire department. A fire tax increase would take a 2/3 vote of approval 
from the registered voters within the district that voted on the measure. Making an effort to 
keep the message simple and due public outreach was part the discussion, along with the 
process of putting the increase in the ballot for voting. The process entails notifying the county 
about the District wanting to put the increase on the next ballot this coming November. How 
much of an increase was also discussed; staff reported that the increase could be around 
double of the current rate. 
 
There were no other comments or concerns regarding the budget. The budget will be 
presented at the regular meeting on June 20, 2023, for adoption.  

4. Financial Management  
The Board decided to table this item until the new Administrative Manager is present. With her 
background in accounting, it was determined that her input into the District’s financial 
management would be beneficial to addressing the needs of the District in this area.  

5. Water Debt Service Account 
This item was tabled until the new administrative manager is present and provides input on 
which type of account will best fit the District’s needs. 

In Attendance:
Chairperson Don Fregulia  
Vice Chairperson VACANT
Board Director Cheryl Sinsel 
Board Director Todd Solomon
Board Director Rich Machado 

Respectfully Submitted,

Jamar Tate
General Manager and Acting Board Clerk



OATH 

For  the  Office  of

I,      , do solemnly swear or affirm 

that I will support and defend the Constitution of the United States 

and the Constitution of the State of California against all enemies, 

foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to 

the Constitution of the United States and the State of California; 

that I take this obligation freely, without any mental reservation or 

purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully discharge the 

duties upon which I am about to enter.  

Signature:

Term of Office: 
Beginning Ending 

Subscribed and sworn before me, 
Month, Day, Year 

Official Signature Title 

   Director: PECSD Board

12/01/2021 12/01/2025













































Plumas Eureka Community Services District 

RESOLUTION #2023-02 

RESOLUTION TO ENACT THE PLUMAS EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
INCREASE TO THE SPECIAL TAX ON ALL TAXABLE REAL PROPERTY FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FIRE PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
RESPONSE SERVICES INCLUDING FIRE PREVENTION AND SUPPRESSION, RESCUE 
AND OTHER SERVICES; AND TO CALL AN ELECTION THEREON. 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Plumas Eureka Community Services District (the 
"Board") has determined that it is in the best interests of the District's citizens to 
maintain a Volunteer Fire Department to provide adequate fire protection and 
emergency services for our community;  

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the provision of such services is 
becoming unsustainable because of the recent dramatic increase in the cost of 
liability insurance and the continual increasing costs of equipment and supplies 
and that these costs now exceed the District revenues from tax assessments and 
fees by over sixty percent ; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that to cover the continual cost increases it 
is necessary to increase the special property tax enacted in 2011; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the 
community to seek voter approval, which will require approval by two-thirds of 
the voters voting thereon, for the proposed increased property tax in order to be 
able to maintain appropriate fire protection and emergency medical response 
services; and 

WHEREAS, if approved by the voters, the increased special property tax will be 
used solely for the purpose of providing fire protection and emergency medical 
response services within the District; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable that the special all mail district election be conducted by 
the County of Plumas Election Department and it is necessary for the District to 
request services of the County; and 

WHEREAS, all necessary expenses in performing these services shall be paid by 
the Plumas Eureka Community Services District; and 



WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of California Health & Safety Code section 
Article 13911 and Government Code sections 50075-50077.5, the Board of 
Directors is authorized to adopt this resolution which shall, subject to the 
approval of the voters impose a special property tax, which shall be applied 
against all taxable real property within the District; and 

WHEREAS, all district elections shall be called, held and conducted in all respects 
as nearly as is practicable in conformity with the Uniform District Election Law 
(Election Code 10500 et seq.). Section 10517 of which provides that the County 
Elections Official shall conduct such elections; and 

WHEREAS, Section 9280 of the Elections Code authorizes the filing of an impartial 
analysis and Sections 9282 et seq. of. said code authorize the filing of written 
arguments for or against any ballot proposition and rebuttal arguments. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE PLUMAS EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. There is hereby enacted within the Plumas Eureka Community Services 
District (the "District"), if approved by the voters, an increased special tax to be 
assessed against all taxable real property within the District. The full text of the 
proposed ballot measure is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein. 

If approved by the voters, the increased special tax shall continue until repealed 
by the Board of Directors or by the voters. 

Section 2. That the Plumas County Board of Supervisors is requested to issue 
instructions to the County Election Department to take any and all steps 
necessary for the holding of the mail ballot special district election on  November 
14, 2023  for the Plumas Eureka Community Services District. 

Section 3. That the County Election Department is authorized to canvass the 
returns of the special municipal election. 

Section 4. That the County Clerk is authorized to recover expenses for the 
election service performed from the District. 



Section 5. That the increased special tax shall be deemed established and shall be 
in effect as of the day following the election, upon certification of the election 
results evidencing approval by at least two-thirds of the registered voters voting 
thereon by the Board of Directors of the District. 

Section 6. That the increased special property tax shall be used solely for the 
purpose of providing fire protection, both prevention and suppression, 
emergency medical response services within the District, for any responses 
outside of the District under automatic/mutual aid agreements with other fire 
suppression or emergency service agencies, and for any incidental expenses 
related to the collection of the tax. 

In accordance with Government Code Section 50075.3, the District's General 
Manager, as the chief fiscal officer of the District, shall file a report with the 
District Board of Directors at least once a year. The annual report shall contain 
both of the following: (a) the amount of funds collected and expended; (b) the 
status of any project required or authorized to be funded with the proceeds of 
the special tax in accordance with this Section. 

Section 7, That there may be per annum fee based upon changes in the in the 
Western States Consumer Price Index (CPI).  The District will consider changes 
using data provided by the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, U. S. Cities 
averages for the preceding calendar year (or, if discontinued, a comparable 
index). Under no circumstances can the cost of living adjustment be put in place 
without the proposed modification of the fee being placed on the agenda of the 
Plumas Eureka CSD Board of Director's regular meeting with an opportunity for 
public input and discussion. 

Section 8 That unless otherwise ordered pursuant to a resolution adopted by the 
Board, the special property tax shall be collected on the Plumas Eureka 
Community Services billing in the same manner as the current community service 
charges are collected, and subject to the same penalties. 

Upon receipt of the special taxes, the District shall cause same to be deposited in 
a special tax account or such other account established by the District which 
allows the District to properly account for the taxes in compliance with the 
provisions of Government Code Section 50075.3. 



Section 9. That any property owner who is assessed a special tax as provided for 
herein may appeal any determination by the District concerning the nature of the 
use of the property or the calculation of the amount of the tax by filing a notice of 
appeal with the District offices. The appeal shall be filed on the form provided by 
the District and shall contain a statement by the property owner as to the nature 
and basis for the appeal in accordance with the District's appeal procedure. 

Section 10. The District Secretary is directed to forward without delay to the 
Board of Supervisors and to the County Election Department, each a certified 
copy of this resolution. 

Section 11. That pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 50077.5 
any judicial action or proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void or annul this 
resolution and/or the approval of the subject special property tax and/or increase 
in the spending limitation pertaining to the special property tax shall be 
commenced, if at all, within 60 days of the date of the adoption hereof. 

Adopted on this 20th  day of June, 2023 by the following roll call vote of the Board 
of Directors of the Plumas Eureka Community Services District.  

  



EXHIBIT A

Text of the Ballot Measure 

The question submitted to the voters shall read substantially as follows:  
 
To maintain local fire protection and emergency medical response services for 
properties within the Plumas Eureka. Community Services District, so that victims 
of heart attack, stroke, car accidents and other medical emergencies can receive 
rapid response care, and to keep property insurance rates manageable, do you 
support an annual special property tax with all revenue staying in our community, 
for local fire protection and emergency medical response services? 

  



FULL TEXT OF SPECIAL TAX MEASURE PLUMAS EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT PARCEL TAX FOR FIRE SUPPRESSION·, PROTECTION AND EMERGENCY 
MEDICAL RESPONSE SERVICES  

The Plumas Eureka Community Services District is responsible for fire protection 
and emergency medical response services within the CSD area. In order to 
maintain year-round fire protection and medical emergency response services, 
keep property insurance rates manageable, and to adequately train and equip 
firefighters, the District proposes to levy a special tax on each taxable parcel of 
land within the District at the following annual rates. If passed, this special tax 
would replace the current annual benefit assessment charges for both operations 
and capital as listed below: 

Proposed New 
Rate  

Current 
Assessments to Be 
Replaced 

Total Increase  

DEVELOPED LOTS 

Annual $289.80 $143.40 $143.40 

Quarterly $71.70 $35.85 $35.85 

Monthly $23.90 $11.95 $11.95 

UNDEVELOPED LOTS 

Annual $143.28 $71.64 $71.64 

Quarterly $35.82 $17.91 $17.91 

Monthly $11.94 $5.97 $5.97

Taxable parcels are those parcels that appear on the annual secured Plumas 
County property tax roll and are billable for Plumas Eureka CSD services.  

The purpose of this parcel tax will be to ensure continued local fire suppression 
and protection as well as rapid emergency response services for all residents, 
employees, and visitors in the District. The revenues raised by this special tax will 
only be used to defray operating expenses and capital improvement expenditures 
to accomplish the foregoing purposes.  



In order to help ensure that the revenues from the special tax grow in line with 
the inflation adjusted cost of providing local fire protection and emergency 
medical emergency services, the tax rate may increase in future years by an 
annual amount, based upon changes in the Western States Consumer Price Index 
(CPI).  Under no circumstances can the cost-of-living adjustment be put in place 
without the proposed modification of the fee being placed on the agenda of the 
Plumas Eureka CSD Board of Director's regular meeting with an opportunity for 
public input and discussion.  

If the special tax is approved by two-thirds of the voters voting on the measure, 
the District's appropriations limit will be increased by the amount of this voter-
approved tax.  

The special tax revenues shall be deposited into a separate account for exclusive 
use by the Plumas Eureka Community Services District, in accordance with 
Government Code Section 50075.1, and shall be expended by the District 
according to a plan developed annually by the District staff and adopted by the 
District's Board of Directors.  

The District will cause to be filed an annual report with its Board of Directors, 
which report shall include the amount of special tax revenues collected and 
expended, and which shall otherwise comply with the accountability measures 
established in Government Code Sections 50075.1 et seq.  

Any property owner who is assessed a special tax as provided for herein may 
appeal any determination by the District concerning the nature of the use of the 
property or the calculation of the amount of the tax by filing a notice of appeal 
with the District offices. Any such appeal shall be filed by December 1st of the 
calendar year for which the tax is levied. The appeal shall be filed on the form 
provided by the District and shall contain a statement by the property owner as to 
the nature and basis for the appeal in accordance with the District's appeal 
procedure.  



U
D

E
L

 E
le

ct
io

n
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
 7

, 
20

2
3

C
al

en
da

r 
of

 E
ve

n
ts

 f
or

 L
oc

a
l R

a
ce

s 
- 

M
ea

su
re

s 
 E

-1
3

7
Ju

n 
2

6 
23

R
es

o
lu

tio
n

s 
fo

r 
M

e
as

ur
e

s 
to

 a
p

pe
ar

 o
n

 B
a

llo
t f

ile
d

 w
/C

ou
nt

y 
C

le
rk

E
-1

3
4

Ju
l 3

 2
3

B
o

ar
d 

of
 S

up
er

vi
so

rs
 A

g
en

da
 R

eq
u

es
t 

b
y 

1
2:

00
 n

o
on

E
-1

2
3

Ju
l 1

1
 2

3
R

es
o

lu
tio

n
s 

ad
op

te
d

 b
y 

th
is

 d
at

e
 b

y 
B

O
S

 a
ut

h
or

iz
in

g
 c

o
ns

ol
id

a
tio

n
s 

E
-1

1
8

Ju
l 1

2
 2

3
A

rg
um

en
ts

 F
or

 &
 A

g
a

in
st

 M
e

as
u

re
s 

P
e

rio
d 

- 
1

0 
C

a
le

nd
ar

 D
ay

s

E
-1

1
3

Ju
l 1

7
 2

3
F

ili
n

g
 P

er
io

d 
O

pe
ns

 -
 D

e
cl

a
ra

tio
n

 o
f 

C
an

di
da

cy
 &

 N
o

m
in

a
tio

n

E
-1

0
9

Ju
l 2

1
 2

3
La

st
 D

a
y 

- 
A

rg
u

m
e

n
ts

 F
or

 &
 A

g
a

in
st

 M
ea

su
re

s 
ca

n
 b

e
 f

ile
d

 

E
-1

0
6

Ju
l 2

4
 2

3
F

irs
t 

D
ay

 R
eb

ut
ta

ls
 t

o
 A

rg
u

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

M
e

as
u

re
s 

- 
10

 C
al

en
da

r 
D

a
ys

E
-9

7
A

ug
 2

 2
3

La
st

 D
a

y 
R

e
bu

tt
a

ls
 t

o 
A

rg
u

m
e

n
ts

 f
or

 M
ea

su
re

s 
ca

n 
be

 f
ile

d

E
-8

8
A

ug
 1

1
 2

3
F

ili
n

g
 p

er
io

d 
cl

o
se

s 
fo

r 
In

cu
m

b
en

t 
C

an
di

da
te

s

E
-8

3
A

ug
 1

6
 2

3
E

xt
e

ns
io

n 
o

f 
F

ili
n

g
 P

er
io

d
 f

o
r 

N
o

n-
In

cu
m

be
nt

 C
a

nd
id

at
e

s

E
-6

8
A

ug
 1

8
 2

3
E

IM
S

 e
xt

ra
ct

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
to

 D
om

in
io

n

E
-6

0
S

ep
 8

 2
3

M
ili

ta
ry

 &
 O

ve
rs

e
as

 B
al

lo
ts

 M
a

ile
d

E
-4

0
S

ep
 2

6
 2

3
Lo

g
ic

 &
 A

cc
u

ra
cy

 T
es

tin
g

E
-2

8
O

ct
 1

0 
2

3
V

o
te

 B
y 

M
ai

l B
a

llo
ts

 M
ai

le
d

E
-1

5
O

ct
 2

3 
2

3
C

lo
se

 o
f 

R
e

g
is

tr
a

tio
n 

an
d

 A
d

dr
es

s 
C

o
rr

e
ct

io
n

 t
o 

R
e

g
is

tr
a

tio
n

E
-1

1
 

N
o

v 
2 

2
3

B
a

llo
t 

P
ro

ce
ss

in
g

 b
e

g
in

s

E
-0

N
o

v 
7 

2
3

E
le

ct
io

n 
D

a
y

E
+

7
N

o
v 

14
 2

3
E

le
ct

io
n 

D
a

y 
+

 7
 d

ay
 p

o
st

m
a

rk
 r

e
vi

e
w

 

E
+

8
N

o
v 

15
 2

3
B

a
llo

t 
R

et
ur

n 
E

nv
e

lo
pe

 -
 8

 d
ay

 s
ig

n
at

u
re

 c
ur

e

E
+

14
N

o
v 

21
 2

3
C

an
va

ss
 p

ro
ce

ss
 b

eg
in

s

E
+

15
N

o
v 

22
 2

3
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

o
f 

re
su

lts
 

E
+

28
D

e
c 

5 
2

3
C

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

o
f 

re
su

lts
 t

o 
B

o
ar

d
 o

f 
S

u
pe

rv
is

or
s 

a
t 

th
ei

r 
re

g
ul

ar
 m

e
et

in
g



Policy Title: Disposal of Surplus Supplies or Equipment  
Policy Number: 3046 
 
 

3046.10 This policy is for the purpose of disposition of District surplus supplies and 
equipment.  

3046.20 The General Manager is authorized, in his/her sole discretion, to determine the 
manner and method of disposal of District property that has been determined by the Board of 
Directors to be surplus to the needs of the District. Disposal methods may include negotiated 
sale, auction, consignment, scrap or salvage, or donation to non-profit charitable or government 
entities. Disposal must be done to maximize the overall dollar return to the District if a 
buyer can be found. If no buyer can be found, the list of items to be donated should be 
brought for Board approval. In the event the General Manager determines there is no 
salvage value, no buyers, or no beneficiaries, the surplus items can be discarded. 
Documentation of disposal shall be made in order to drop accountability of District 
property. 

 
3046.21 The General Manager, at his/her discretion, may dispose of surplus property 

valued under $500, without Board approval. 
 
3046.22 Any item valued over $500 shall have Board approval before disposition.  

PLUMAS EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Policy Handbook 



Arsenic Levels 

Report on Arsenic Compliance Actions 

June 20, 2023

Submitted by Jamar Tate, General Manager

The most recent reported sample from the Compliance point were taken on June 8, 2023. The
result showed the arsenic levels at 9 ppb. May result showed 7 ppb. The first quarter 2023 
average was 7 ppb. The current Running Annual Average (RAA) is 8 ppb. 

Samples were taken at Well 1B and Well 2 on June 8, 2023. The result from Well 1B was 7 
ppb. The result from Well 2 was 16 ppb. The first quarter 2022 average for Well 1B was 5 ppb 
with the RAA of 7 ppb. The first quarter average for Well 2 was 14 with the RAA of 15 ppb.

Iron and Manganese Compliance Levels 

The most recent results of the tests of the Quarterly samples taken on April 13, 2023 for Iron were 
.280 mg/l at Well 1B and 1.05 mg/l at Well 2; for Manganese were .100 mg/l at Well 1B and .08 
mg/l at Well 2. (The Secondary Standard for Iron is .300 mg/l. The Secondary Standard for 
Manganese is .05 mg/l.). 

Remediation Project Development Project Schedule 

Schedule is unchanged from last month. 

STAGE TIMEFRAME COMMENT 
  

FINANACAL
SRF application submittal August 2023 Submittal is contingent on the final pilot 

study report being accepted by SWRCB. 
Pilot study should be completed by 
May/June 2023 and Pilot Study Report 
will be submitted to SWRCB in June 
2023 (three weeks after final pilot 
testing).

Application Review August 2023 – January 2024 Assumes a six-month review 

CONSTRUCTION
Contractor Selection Apr 2024-May 2024 Assumes and 90 day bid and selection

process
Construction Jun 2024 – Jun 2025 Assumes a one-year construction

OPERATION

Shakedown Jul 2025 – Jun 2026 Needed to ensure the systems work and 
to train operators 

Pilot Testing Jul 2026-Jun2027 Needed to refine operational procedures
to maximize removal of As, Fe,and Mn.

Full Operation Jul 2027



CHIEF’S REPORT 
May 2023

Call Reports and Training

Calls – Medicals: 2 Fire: 0 
 

Training  
Hydrant and pump panel training.

 Communications training on Radios.  

Personnel Activity
 Chris Baker has joined the department. 

 
Fire Equipment 

 Wet rescue truck, GSA 1122 program (ongoing).  
  Quote from Burton’s about 9153 conversion $70k. 
  9121 has a bad pump throttle knob.  

Other Activity 
 Burning is allowed again with a permit and on burn days.  
 Building remodel.  
 Submitted new FEMA Grant request and Cal Fire Grant. 
 Dirt circle in the field, working with Jamar.  
 Looking into how to combat electric car fires. 

 



May 2023 Ops Report 

Water  

  Flow – Well 1b: 4,645,200 gallons Well2: 1,620,800 gallons Total: 6,266,000 gallons Daily Avg: 
202,129 gallons      

 Well 1b Transducer Replacement:

 

 
 Water mains Flushed:

 

 

 

Wastewater 

 Flow - WWTP 6:  287,321 gallons  9,268 gallons  WWTP 7: 947,977 30,580 
gallons Total: 1,235,298 gallons  

 

Miscellaneous

 Potholes
  

 Seq : 
rest 

 
 General Maintenance: Basket strainers, bar screens, and generator checks 

Future

  
  

  


	1 June 20 2023 Regular Board Meeting Agenda
	2 MINUTES 05162023
	2 MINUTES 05162023_Page_1.pdf
	2 MINUTES 05162023_Page_2.pdf
	2 MINUTES 05162023_Page_3.pdf
	2 MINUTES 05162023_Page_4.pdf
	2 MINUTES 05162023_Page_5.pdf
	2 MINUTES 05162023_Page_6.pdf
	2 MINUTES 05162023_Page_7.pdf

	3 MINUTES 06082023
	4 OATH TRAIN JUNE 2023
	5.1 BUDGET O&M 23-24
	5.2 BUDGET CAPITAL 23-24
	6 RESOLUTION 2023-02
	7 Policy 3046 Disposal of Surplus Supplies or Equipment
	9 Water System Compliance
	10 FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT June 20 2023
	12 Ops Report June 20 2023
	92 MINUTES 05162023
	93 MINUTES 06082023
	94 OATH TRAIN JUNE 2023
	95.1 BUDGET O&M 23-24
	95.2 BUDGET CAPITAL 23-24
	96 RESOLUTION 2023-02
	97 Policy 3046 Disposal of Surplus Supplies or Equipment
	99 Water System Compliance
	910 FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT June 20 2023
	912 Ops Report June 20 2023
	May 2023 Ops report




